e

Rome City Board of Zoning Appeals
April 17, 2025
Page 1 of 4
ROME CITY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
Regular Meeting
April 17, 2025

The Rome City Board of Zoning Appeals held their regular meeting on Thursday, April 17, 2025
at 7:00 p.m. in the Rome City Town Hall. The meeting was called to order by President Kelly
Morris.

Members Present:

Barb Tatman Christine Coe
Kelly Morris Leigh A. Pranger-Secretary
Gerrit Geurs Tom Clifton

Rollcall determined a quorum was present.

Member Tatman made a motion to waive the reading of the minutes and approve them as
presented. Second by Member Clifton. All in favor-aye. Motion Carried. The minutes were
posted on the bulletin board for everyone to read.

Interested Parties in attendance: Town Attorney Dustin Glick, Brandon and Brandy Ley Family,
Kevin and Rhonda Noll, Janet Lawson, Larry Weisenberger, Christopher Goff-Attorney for
Weisenberger, Steve and Carrie Brookhart, Glenn and Jean Ellis, John Lipasek, and Billy Creigh.

OLD BUSINESS-Tabled from January meeting

Tabled to the May meeting

Variance #2025-02

Bret and Jodie Swaney, 6714 Laysan Teal Cove, Fort Wayne, IN 46845, owners of 1498 North
Shore Drive, Rome City, IN 46784 are requesting variances from the Rome City Unified
Development Code, Lake Residential District, Article 5.66 SB-02 Setback Exceptions Standards
A. Exceptions 6. Chimneys. This will allow the chimney two feet into the side yard setback on
the east side of the house.

Attorney Glick informed the board he received a letter from Attorney Dana Carlson stating that a
legal non-conforming lot only has to be less non-conforming than the previous building. The
previous house was within three-four feet on the east side of the lot. The current survey shows
the new house is 4’8" on the northeast corner and 5°1” southeast corner. They are questioning
whether they needed a variance. Attorney Glick stated that the zoning administrator needs to
determine what the codes states. He asked Pranger to make a written summation. Member
Geurs asked if the new house is further back than the old house. How much of the new chimney
is within the old setback? Or if the old house did not have a chimney can the board approve this
or is it ok because it is further back even though they didn’t have a chimney.

NEW BUSINESS

Variance #2025-10

Glenn & Jean Ellis Trustees, 690 Spring Beach Road, Rome City, IN 46784 are requesting a
P.O. Box 338

402 Kelly Street (260) 854-2412 Rome City, IN 46784

www.in.gov/towns/townofromecity/




~

Rome City Board of Zoning Appeals

April 17, 2025

Page 2 of 4

variance for relief from the Rome City Unified Development Code, 5.23FW-04 Residential
Fence Standards C. Height, 1. Height in Lake Residential District requiring fences to be four feet
in height in the side and rear yards. Requesting the fence to be six feet in height in the side and
read yard of the Lake Residential District. To allow for the continued placement of a 6° privacy
fence and to contain play and sports equipment in the Ellis’ yard.

President Morris called for Glenn Ellis to present his petition to the board. Mr. Ellis referred to
the submitted pictures of the fence and survey. Mr. Ellis went through the findings of fact
stating the fence is not a threat to public health as was placed 4’ from the property line, the fence
does not affect the neighbors as it does not block anyone views, it doesn’t cause a hardship
because it will block the basketballs from going into the neighbor’s yard, it will not devalue
property as it is a nice wooden panel fence. He stated a four-foot fence will not keep the
basketballs from going into the neighbor’s property. He directed the board to the submitted
photos showing the neighbor’s have a fence made of fence posts and string, the new wooden
fence is much better to look at. Member Tatman asked how high is the existing fence? Mr. Ellis
stated it is six feet. President Morris asked for the circumstances that occurred and why you need
a fence. Mr. Ellis stated, his neighbor’s, the Brookhart’s, watch his grandkids when they are
playing basketball, which makes the uncomfortable. He stated that one time the basketball went
into the neighbor’s yard, and they kept the basketball, called the police, and asked to have his 14-
year-old grandson arrested for trespassing. The police officer refused to arrest. He informed the
board the Brookhart’s have installed a camera directed at his house, so they know when they are
coming and going. Jean Ellis stated we just want some privacy from our neighbor and for the
kids to play basketball in peace. She informed the board they recently retained custody of the
grandkids, and they like to play outside but, they wouldn’t until the fence was put up. Because
the neighbors were always staring at them. She also noted that Mrs. Carrie Brookhart has been
flipping the kids off.

There being no further questions, President Morris called for any interested parties on behalf of
Variance #2025-10. Secretary Pranger informed the board she notified all adjoining owners on
the petition; they return with no comments and only Steve and Carrie Brookhart were in
attendance. Brookhart’s stated they previously asked for a fence and were told that fences had to
be four feet in height in the side and rear yard, this fence is six feet tall. She further stated she
was not offered a variance. She further added it runs right across the driveway and looks terrible
and will devalue their property. Steve Brookhart passed out packets of information on the
Town’s Unified Development Ordinance citing that the petition should not have been placed on
the agenda until it was in the office for 28 days. Zoning Administrator Pranger informed the
board she did not have time to research their claims as the dropped the packet off at 3:30 p.m. the
day of the meeting. Attorney Glick stated anyone is entitled to apply for a variance. Due to
having no time to research Brookhart’s assertions on the 28 days he suggested the petitioner can
request to table the petition to next month in order to have the sufficient number of days on the
petition. At the closure of the public hearing on petition #2025-10, Secretary Pranger asked Mr.
Ellis if he wanted to request to table the petition and findings of fact for the May meeting. Mr.
Ellis requested to have Variance #2025-10 tabled for the May 15" meeting. Member Clifton
made a motion to table Variance #2025-10 to May 15™. Second by Member Tatman. All in
favor-aye. Motion Carried.

P.O. Box 338
402 Kelly Street (260) 854-2412 Rome City, IN 46784
www.in.gov/towns/townofromecity/




Rome City Board of Zoning Appeals

April 17, 2025

Page 3 of 4

Variance #2025-11

Brandon and Brandy Ley, 9153 N. Overlook Drive, Rome City, IN 46784 are requesting a
variance for relief from the Rome City Unified Development Code, 5.07 AS-05 Lake Residential
District C. Quantity and Size 2. Maximum Size of 1200 sq. ft for accessory structure up to 1904
sq. ft. Also, relief from D. Materials to match principal structure to allow for metal ash gray
siding and metal charcoal roof on the accessory building. To allow for a 42°x 24’ addition to the
existing building for storage purposes. President Morris called for the Ley’s to present their
petition to the board. Brandon Ley informed the board they would like to add 1000 sq.ft. onto
their current barn, reside and install a new roof to match. He stated they need more room for
storage of boats, vehicles and lake accessories. They have kids and need more storage room.
The building will match the color of the house ash gray metal siding with a charcoal metal roof.
He noted that there is a hill on the lakeside, and you will not be able to see the building from the
lake. He informed the board he owns three lots; the house is on one lot; the building is on the
middle lot and the other lot is vacant. He informed the board they only have one physical
neighbor, and the other adjoining lots are not built on. One adjoining owner is the lake access lot
for the Oak Shores Development and the other lots are owned by the developer and they are
currently undeveloped. Brandy Ley informed the board the building will be connected inside,
and they will be installing a concrete driveway. They noted they just want more room to store
everything and have the house and building match. The current barn/garage has old siding and
asphalt shingle roof. Member Clifton asked if there will be living quarters in the bam or
plumbing? Brandon Ley stated no. There being no further questions, President Morris called for
interested parties on variance #2025-02. Secretary Pranger informed the board she notified all
the adjoining owners and only the developer, Brian Schaper, returned without comments.
Closing the Public Hearing President Morris called for a motion on Variance #2025-11.
Member Geurs made a motion to approve Variance #2025-11 as presented per the findings of
fact. Second by Member Clifton. All in favor-Aye, Motion Carried

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

Update on Larry Weisenberger’s trees on Pleasant Point. Attorney Glick informed the board the
appeal will be postponed as he has received a settlement offer. The offer came from Attorney
Michael Lang, he stated that after the appeal meeting Mr. Weisenberger cut down the outside
trees on the double row along the north side of the property and cut down one on the south side
of the property. They would like to keep the remaining trees. Attorney Glick stated if the board
allows the remaining trees than once the trees died or need replaced, Mr. Weisenberger would
have to come to the board for a variance to replant. President Morris asked how many trees are
left on both sides? Attorney Glick responded, five trees on one side a four on the other. Member
Tatman stated no, the trees are a fence and need to be cut down so everyone can view the water.
Attorney Glick informed the board they can counter on the settlement. Member Clifton stated
maybe if they cut the trees down to a certain height. Member Tatman stated, I say they need to
be removed. Member Geurs stated that fences in the lake yard are not allowed. The board
denied the settlement offer. Attorney Glick stated the appeal will be back on the agenda for the
May 15" meeting.

P.O. Box 338
402 Kelly Street (260) 854-2412 Rome City, IN 46784

WWW. in. govitowns/townofromecity/




Rome City Board of Zoning Appeals
April 17, 2025
Page 4 of 4

Attorney Glick discussed an issue with the non-conforming use section, acts of god and fence
definition, in the code and stated he will have an amendment ready for the June meeting for the
Plan Commission to review.

Next Meeting: May 15, 2025 at 7:00 p.m.

There being no further business, Member Geurs made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:00

p.m. Second by Member Coe. All in favor-aye. Motion Carried.
‘M(M /i/\ _..._._..l\ Attest: Zﬁ '/L_
eight A@’;anﬂer Secret ry

Kelly Morys Chair BZA

\ P.O. Box 338
"/ 402 Kelly Street (260) 854-2412 Rome City, IN 46784
www. in. gov/towns/townofromecity/




